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Directors’ report

Development of the activity

After the significant changes, which have involved the Société Européenne de Banque S.A. (the
“Bank”) during the 2008, the 2009 has been an outstanding year for the financial results.

After the completion of the reorganisation process in the Intesa Sanpaolo Group in 2008, with the
transfer of the investment fund activity to Sanpaolo Bank S.A. and the transfer from the same bank
of the treasury and private and corporate clientele activities, the year 2009 has been devoted to the
enhancements of our activity and that has generated profit as at 31 December 2009 of EUR 93
million (2008: EUR 46 million) despite the negative impact of “scudo fiscale” and, mainly for the
first part of the year, the global financial crisis.

In more details, as of December 2009, the Corporate Structured Division has reached the targets
assigned in the relevant budget (EUR 15 million), after a difficult beginning. The Wealth
Management Division (EUR 26.2 million) has performed better than the budget (plus 2.8%). The
Financial Markets Division has over performed (plus 34% over budget) reaching EUR 70 million,
impacted also by the growth of the intra-group funding, which totalled 5.3 bio at the end of the year.

Risk Control

The risk management process, developed in connection with the local requirements and the Parent
Company guidelines, consists of the identification, analysis and mitigation of major risks of the
Bank (compliance and reputation risk, market risk, liquidity risk, credit risk and operationatl risk.). It
includes different mitigating controls and structures.

The Risk Manager monitors on regular basis, under the supervision of the Management of the
Bank, the market risks and the liquidity risk. He checks that the limits to the above risks are
respected and in line with the Bank’s limits.

He aiso manages the operational risk and provides different reporting to the General Management,
the Board of Directors, the Audit Committee and the Parent Company.

The Credit risk is mainly monitored by the Credit Department on a daily basis, with further
periodical reporting of the risks to the bodies of the Bank.

The Compliance function identifies, assesses and controls the compliance risks within the Bank
and acts as advisor in compliance matters.

The Legal Department monitors constantly the legal risks of the Bank.



The Internal Audit function monitors and evaluates the effectiveness of the Bank's risk
management process and the Internal Controls System. It performs different audit missions with
periodical reporting of the results and residual risks of the different processes, to the Bank’s
Management and bodies.

Perspectives

The main objectives for 2010 is to achieve the budget target, set as EUR 117.7 million (gross
profit) and EUR 84.1 miliion (net profit) despite a difficult outlook mainly caused by the on going
initiatives, namely “"C.F.C." and "scudo fiscale”, by the ltalian Government, which are expected to
affect our business negatively.

Moreover, beside the direct impact to our profit and loss, the Bank will face an increasing hostile
environment, fuelled by the media network, affecting the regular course of our business, since it is
also expected to alter the mood of the ltalian investors.

Financial elements for 2009

The total assets as at 31 December 2009 were EUR 9.6 billion (2008: EUR 8.8 billion).

The loans and receivables amounted to EUR 8.0 billion, of which EUR 7.3 billion has been granted
to other credit institutions of the Group. Leans and receivables granted to customers other than
credit institutions amounted to EUR 651 million.

The financial assets held for trading are mainiy composed of derivatives financial instruments and
debt securities valuated at their fair value.

The derivative financial instruments amounted to EUR 99 million and are mainly composed of
interest rate swaps and foreign exchange derivative contracts.

Concerning the debt securities, they have been acquired during the 2009 and amounted to EUR
131 million.

The financial assets carried at fair value to profit or loss are composed of investments in financial
instruments purchased tc be kept in the Bank pertfolio but evaluated at their fair value. As at 31
December 2009 they amounted to EUR 235 million.

The available-for-sale financial assets, which amount to EUR 853 million, were mainly composed
of debt securities issued by other credit institutions for an amount of EUR 837 million and of the
investments in subsidiaries.

The held-to-maturity portfolio was composed of a debt security issued by the ltalian Government
for an amount of EUR 25 million and of a debt security issued by Intesa Sanpaolo for an amount of
EUR 150 million.

On the liabilities side, the Bank had EUR 2.3 billion of deposits from customers. The Bank has also
issued debts certificates for an amount of EUR 2.1 billion. The liabilities included as well deposits
from credit institutions for EUR 4.3 billion.

The net profit for the year amounts to EUR 93 million (2008: EUR 46 million), with a ROE equal to
22% (2008: 23%).

The net interest income amounts to EUR 117 million at the end of the 2009, significantly increased
if compared with the 2008 figures (EUR 63 million). The interest income and expense reflects the
2009 average volume of liquidities.



The net fee and commission income amounts to EUR 29 million, showing an increase compared to
2008 net fee and commission income.

On 16 December 2009, the Bank has sold its participation in the company SEB Trust LTD for an
amount of EUR 410.000, equal to its book vaiue.

The net (umrealised losses on financial assets and liabilities held for trading amounts to EUR 25
million as at 31 December 2009 (2008: EUR -16 million); the loss is due to the negative
fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and liabilities held by the Bank for trading purposes.

The net (unjrealised gains on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
amounted to EUR 7 million as at 31 December 2009 (2008: EUR —6 million) due to the positive
fluctuations on the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value through profit
or loss.

The total administrative expenses have decreased compared to 2008, moving from EUR 34 mitlion
to EUR 29 million. The total staff expenses remained substantially in line with the 2008, while the
other administrative expenses decreased from EUR 16 million to EUR 11 million in particular in
relation to a reduction in the |IT outsourcing costs.

The Bank has booked depreciations according to the fiscal law. No provisions have been booked
in relation to current income taxes for the years 2008 and 2009 due to the fact that the Bank can
neutralise its current income taxes thanks to the application of the local rules on the consolidation
taxable results with the ones generated by its Luxembourg Mother Company.

On the other side, deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been booked as at 31
December 2009,

The net profit of the year available for the distribution, including the retained earnings amounts to
EUR 92 877 447. The Board of Directors will propose the following distribution of the profits to the
Annual General Meeting which will be held to approve the annual accounts as at 31 December
2009:

Net profit of 2009 financial year EUR 92 865 611
Retained profit from previous years (excluding FTA) EUR 11 836
Amount attributable to Shareholders EUR 92 877 447
Allocation to reserves EUR 55 500 000
Dividend for the financial year EUR 37 350 000
Retained profit carried forward to the next financial year EUR 27 447
Total EUR 92 877 447

No significant subsequent events, which could have an impact on the 2009 figures or on the
disclosures occurred after the year-end 2009.

The Bank did not purchase own shares during the 2009.

No research and development costs have been sustained during the 2009.

The Board of Directors is satisfied concerning the profits generated. It thanks the Managing
Directors of the Bank for their activity and ail the employees for their professional behaviour and

the quality of the services provided to their clients.

Luxembourg, 23 February 2010
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Independent Auditor’s report

To the Board of Directors of
Société Européenne de Banque
Société Anonyme

Luxembourg

Report on the annual accounts

Following our appointment by the Board of Directors, we have audited the accompanying annual accounts of
Societé Européenne de Bangque S.A., which comprise the statement of financial position as at

31 December 2009, the income statement, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Board of Directors’ responsibility for the annual accounts

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these annual accounts in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union. This
respensibility includes: designing; implementing and maintaining internal contral relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of annual accounts that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Responsibility of the "réviseur d’entreprises”

Our respensibility is to express an opinion on these annual accounts based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with international Standards on Auditing as adopted by the “Institut des Réviseurs
d'Entreprises”. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the annual accounts are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
annual accounts. The procedures selected depend on the judgement of the "réviseur d’entreprises”,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the annual accounts, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the “réviseur d’entreprises” considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the annual accounts in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control.

Amember firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Responsibility of the “réviseur d'entreprises” (continued)
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

annual accounts.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the annual accounts give a true and fair view of the financial position of Société Européenne
de Banque S.A. as of 31 December 2009, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European
Union.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The Directors’ Report, which is the responsibility of the Board of Directors, is consistent with the annual

accounts.

ERNST & YOUNG
Société Anonyme
Réviseur d'entreprises

Sylvié TESTA

Luxembourg, 23 February 2010



Société Européenne de Bangue
Société Anonyme

Statement of financial position

31 December 2009
(expressed in EUR)

ASSETS

Cash and cash balances with central banks (Notes 3 and 4)

Financial assets held for trading (Notes 3 and §)

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or

loss (Notes 3 and 5)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Notes 3 and §)
Held-to-maturity investments (Notes 3 and 7)

Loans and advances (Notes 3 and 8)
Loans and advances to credit institutions (Note 4}
Loans and advances to customers

Derivatives held for hedging (Note 3)

Property, plant and equipment {Note 9)

Intangible assets (Note 10)

Deferred tax assets (Note 11)

Other assets (Notes 3 and 12)

TOTAL ASSETS

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the annual accounts.

2009 2008
71 329 090 110 030 806
230 464 924 128 240 073
234 793 821 285 342 604
853 004 898 632 288 709
181 312 848 25 356 227

7 302 590 274 6 527 999 543
650 633 428 1 000 997 661

7 953 223 702 7 528 997 204
22 910 040 84 084 283

13 299 656 14 802 267
25308 38 285

12137 272

6 674 712 5 801 449

9 579 176 271

8 814 981 907




LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Deposits from central banks (Note 3)

Financial liabilities held for trading {Note 3)

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or

loss (Notes 3 and 13)

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost {Notes 3

and 14}

Deposits from credit institutions
Deposits from customers
Debts evidenced by certificates

Derivatives held for hedging (Note 3)

Provisions (Note 15)

Deferred tax liabilities (Note 11)

Other liabilities (Note 12)

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Shareholders’ equity (Note 16)
Issued capital

Revaluation reserve

Other reserves and retained earnings
Net profit for the year

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

2009

869 097

137 228 994

98 219 467

4 323 630 365
2333126 839
2 110 980 656

2008

657 904

248 875 540

158 749 058

25620171 908
3915 586 578
1488 375 701

8767 737 860

7933134277

18 908 444 43712934
1410 598 755108

14 493 765 -

17 184 083 16 676 032

9 056 052 308 8 402 560 B53
45 000 000 45 000 000

5 B85 874 -11 951 424
379372478 333 228 446
92 865 611 46 144 032
523 123 963 412 421 054
9579176 271 B 814 981 907




Société Européenne de Banque
Société Anonyme

Income statement

For the year ended 31 December 2008

{expressed in EUR)

Net interest income (Note 17)
Interest and similar income
Interest expenses and similar charges

Net fee and commission income {Note 18)
Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expenses

Dividend income {Note 19}

Net (un)realised gains (losses) on financial assets and
liabilities held for trading (Note 20}

Net (un)realised gains (losses) on financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Note 21)

Net realised gains (losses) from financial assets and
liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss (Note 22)

Fair value adjustments in hedge accounting (Note 3)

Net other operating income / expenses (Notes 23 and 27)
Other operating income

Other operating expenses

Administrative expenses (Notes 24, 27 and 29)
Depreciation and amortisation (Notes 9 and 10)
Provisions {Note 15)

impairment (Notes 8 and 25)

Net profit for the year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the annual accounts.

2009 2008
349 382 466 378673234
-232 858 6849 -315 868 296
116 523 817 62 804 938
39 242 551 38 890 316
-9 746 678 -11 146 924
29 495 873 27743 392
2769 022 944 390
-25 398 380 -15 726 496
7 450 608 -5 526 995
1172 255 3995783
- 10 189 504
475 846 1574079
-4 350 753 -274 109
-3 874 907 1299 970
-28 927 704 -34 062 237
-1 860 375 -1 903 132
~480 490 -675 000
4004108 -2 940 485
92 865 611 46 144 032
-4-



Société Européenne de Bangue
Société Anohyme

Statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2009
{expressed in EUR)

2009 2008
Profit for the year 92 865 611 46 144 032
Other comprehensive income
Net gain (loss) on available-for-sale financial assets 20193 791 -13 679 584
Income tax refating to the components of other
comprehensive income -2 356 493
Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax 17 837 298 -13 679 584
Total comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax 110 702 909 32 464 448

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the annual accounts. -5-
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Société Européenne de Banque
Société Ancnyme

Statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 December 2009

(expressed in EUR)

Profit before tax

Adjustments:
Depreciation / amonrtisation

Impairment for credit losses
Provisions and other income/expenses

Fair value adjustiments
Cash flows from operating profits before changes in
operating assets and liabilities

Net (increase)/decrease in trading assets
Net (increase)/decrease in loans and advances to credit
institutions

Net (increase)/decrease in loans and advances to
customers

Net (increase)/decrease in available-for-sale assets

Net (increase)/decrease in financial assets designated at
fair value through profit or loss

Net (increase)/decrease in derivatives financial
instruments

Net (increase)/decrease in other assets

Net increase/(decrease) in deposits from banks

Net (increase)/decrease in deposits from customers
Net increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities
Net increase/(decrease) in other liabilities

Net cash flow from operating activities M

Dividends received
Acquisition of intangible assets

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from purchase or sale of financial assets held-
to-maturity

Proceeds from sale of subsidiaries
Net cash flow from investing activities

Dividends paid
Net cash flow from financing activities

Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents: exchange rate fiuctuations
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year {Note 4)

of which : not available

20098

92 865 611

1860375
4 004 108
655 490
-40 230 017

59 155 567

2008

46 144 032

1903132
2940 485
-4 265173
8 930 633

-128 062 722

-1 845 662 983

346 360 125
-200 932 399

49 252 577

-8 793 332
-873 263

1823 226 394
-1 582 458 739
534 399 163
508 051

55 653 114

-1 013 038 128

-138 880 756

-185 667 216

-387 216 815
-55 598 805

-23 309 315

-65 175 193
-841 012
-640 451 278
358 490 956
1655 160 060
-100 328 015

2270008

-344 786

-1565 956 621
410 000

416 281 611

-153 621 399

944 390
-1
-538 875

20 511 179
5 000 000

25 916 693

-1 107 503 960

2740107 592
-1 107 503 960

497 851 418

1 632 603 632

2242255774
497 851 418
400

710863 512

Mincluding, for 2008, the effects of the transfer of branches of activity {Refer ta Note 1).

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the annual accounts.

2740107 592

109 770 000



Société Européenne de Bangue
Société Anonyme

Notes to the annual accounts
31 December 2009

Note 1 - General information

Societé Européenne de Banque S.A. (hereafter the "Bank”) was incorporated in Luxembourg on
2 June 1876 as a limited company under Luxembourg law.

The main activities of the Bank are focused on private banking and corporate business. Until
8 July 2008, the Bank provided services to investment funds such as central administration,
transfer agent and custodian. At 7 July 2008, following a decision of the Extraordinary
Shareholders’ Meeting held on 25 June 2008, these activities were fransferred for no
consideration to another Luxembourg entity of the Intesa Sanpaclo Group. At the same date,
private banking and corporate activities were transferred for no consideration from another
Luxembourg entity of intesa Sanpaoclo Group to the Bank.

The Bank does not prepare consolidated financial statements. The Bank is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Intesa Sanpaolo Holding International S.A., which does not object to the Bank not
presenting consolidated financial statements. Intesa Sanpaolo Holding International S.A. is fully
consolidated in the consolidated financial statements of intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A. (hereafter the
"Group”). Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A. produces consolidated financial statements available for public
use that comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the
European Union (EU).

The Bank co-operates to a significant extent with its ultimate parent bank and other entities of
the Intesa Sanpaolo Group.

These annual accounts were authorised for submission to the Shareholders' Annual General
Meeting by the Bank's Board of Directors on 23 February 2010.

The registered office of the Bank is: 19-21, boulevard Prince Henri in Luxembourg.

Due to the transfer of activity occurred in July 2008 and mentioned above, the comparison

between the income statement figures as of 31 December 2009 and 2008 may not be relevant.
Note 2 — Significant accounting policies

{a) Basis of preparation

The annual accounts are prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial instruments

held for trading, for derivatives held for hedging, for financial instruments classified as available-

for-sale and for financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss that
are measured at fair value.



Société Européenne de Bangue
Société Anonyme

Notes to the annual accounts {continued)
31 December 2009

Note 2 - Significant accounting policies (continued)
Statement of compliance

The annual accounts have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (JASB) and the relative
interpretations of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) as
adopted for use in the European Union ("IFRS").

{b) Significant accounting judgements and estimates

In preparing the annual accounts, the Board of Directors is required to make estimates and
assumptions that affect reported income, expenses, assets, liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities. Use of available information and application of judgement are
inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from such
estimates and the differences may be material to the annual accounts.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any
future periods affected.

The most significant use of judgements and estimates are as follows:
Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded on the statement of
financial position cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of
valuation techniques that include the use of mathematical models. The input to these models is
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgement is required in establishing fair values. The judgements include considerations of
liquidity and model inputs such as correlation and volatility for longer dated derivatives.

Impairment losses on loans and advances

The Bank reviews its problem loans and advances at each reporting date to assess whether an
allowance for impairment should be recorded in the income statement. In particular, judgement
by the Board of Directors is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash
flows when determining the level of allowance required. Such estimates are based on
assumptions about a number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes
to the allowance. In addition to specific allowance against individually significant loans and
advances, the Bank also makes a collective impairment test on exposures which, although not
specifically identified as requiring a specific allowance, have a greater risk of default than when
originally granted.



Société Européenne de Banque
Société Anonyme

Notes to the annual accounts {continued)
31 December 2009

Note 2 - Significant accounting policies {continued)

Valuation of unquoted equity investments (except for investments in subsidiaries)

Valuation of unquoted equity investments is normally based on one of the following:
- recent arms length market transactions;
- current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same;

- the expected cash flows discounted at current rates applicable for items with similar terms
and risk characteristics; or

- other valuation models.

The determination of the cash flows and discount factors for unquoted equity investments
requires significant estimation. The Bank calibrates the valuation techniques periodically and
tests them for validity using either prices from observable current market transactions in the
same instrument or from other available observable market data.

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, there were no significant differences between the
transaction price at initial recognition and the fair value that would be determined at that date
using the valuation technigue mentioned above.

Impairment of equity available-for-sale investments

The Bank treats available-for-sale equity investments as impaired when there has been a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or where other cbjective evidence
of impairment exists. The determination of what is “significant’” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. The Bank treats “significant” generally as 20% or more and “prolonged” greater than
6 months. In addition, the Bank evaluates other factors, including normal volatility in share price
for quoted equities and the future cash flows and the discount factors for unquoted equities.

{c) Changes in accournting policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except
as follows:

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

The revised IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” is applied for annual period starting on
or after 1 January 2009. The revised standard separates owner and non-owner changes in
equity. The statement of changes in equity includes only details of transactions with owners,
with non-owner changes in equity presented in a reconciliation of each component of equity. In
addition, the standard introduces the statement of comprehensive income: it presents all items
of recognised income and expense, either in one single statement, or in two linked statements.
The Bank has elected to present two statements.

10 -



Société Européenne de Bangue
Societé Anonyme

Notes to the annual accounts (continued)
31 December 2009

Note 2 — Significant accounting policies {continued)

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

The amended standard is applied for annual period starting on or after 1 January 2009 and
requires additional disclosures about fair value measurement and liquidity risk. Fair value
measurements related to items recorded at fair value are to be disciosed by source of inputs
using a three level fair value hierarchy, by class, for all financial instruments recognised at fair
value. In addition, a reconciliation between the beginning and ending balance for level 3 fair
value measurements is now required, as well as disclosure of significant transfer between levels
in the fair value hierarchy. The amendments also clarify the requirements for liquidity risk
disclosures with respect to derivative transactions and assets used for liquidity management.
The fair value measurement disclosures are presented in Note 3. The liquidity risk disclosures
are not significantly impacted by the amendments and are presented in Note 3.

(d} Standards issued but not yet effective
The following IFRS standards and IFRIC interpretations were issued with an effective date for
financial periads beginning on or after 1 January 2009. The Bank has chosen not to early adopt

these standards and interpretations before their effective dates.

Only accounting policies and disclosures applicable or potentially applicable to the Bank are
mentioned below.

IFRS 3 (Revised 2008) Business Combinations and 1AS 27 (Revised 2008) Consclidated and
Separate Financial Statements

The revised standards were issued in January 2008 and become effective for financial years
beginning on or after 1 July 2009. IFRS 3 {Revised 2008) introduces a number of changes in
the accounting for business combinations that will impact the amount of goodwill recognised, for
future business combinations, the reported results in the period that an acquisition occurs and
future reported results. IAS 27 (Revised 2008) requires that a change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary is accounted for as an equity transaction. Application of the revised standards
will become mandatory for the Bank’s 2010 financial statements.

Amendment to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - Eligible Hedqed
ltems

This amendment to [AS 39 was issued on 31 July 2008 and is applicable for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009 with early application permitted. The amendment clarifies how
the principles that determine whether a hedged risk or portion of cash flows is eligible for
designation should be applied in particular situations.

11 -



Société Européenne de Banque
Société Anonyme

Notes to the annual accounts (continued)
31 December 2009

Note 2 - Significant accounting policies (continued)

IFRS 9: Financial Instruments

This is the first step in a three part project by the 1ASB to replace 1AS 392 Financial Instruments.
This first part, dealing with the classification and measurement of financial assets, simplifies the
recognition of financial assets by requiring such assets to be measured at either amortised cost
or fair value, depending on certain criteria. The standard is effective for financial years
beginning on or after 1 January 2013, although it may be early adopted. The date of the
adoption of this standard by the Bank will also be dependent on the timing of the EU
endorsement process.

(e} Summary of significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these financial statements, except for what is disclosed in Note 2 (c).

Foreign currency translation

The annual accounts are presented in euro (EUR), which is the Bank's functional and
presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the
fransaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than in euro are translated into
euro at the exchange rate prevailing at the statement of financial position date. The gain or loss
arising from such translation is recorded in the income statement.

Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured in terms of histerical cost are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
in a foreign currency measured at fair value are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined.

Exchange differences on non-monetary financial assets are a component of the change in their
fair value. Depending on the classification of a non-monetary financial asset, exchange

differences are either recognised in the income statement or within the equity reserves.

The elements of the income statement are translated info euro on a daily basis using the
prevailing exchange rates.
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Notes to the annual accounts {continued)
31 December 2009

Note 2 — Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial assets other than derivatives
(i) Classification
The Bank classifies its financial assets in the following categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, lcans and advances, held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale

financial assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired for the purpose of short term profit
taking. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss also include financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss in compliance with the
cases contemplated in the reference regulations. The Bank uses the fair value option mainly to
eliminate or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise from measuring assets or recognising the gains and losses on them on different
bases.

Loans and advances

Loans and advances are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Bank provides money, goods or
services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the receivable.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investmenis are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturities that the Bank’s Management has the positive intention and ability
to hold to maturity. Were the Bank to sell other than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity
assets, the entire category would be required to be reclassified as available-for-sale financial
assets.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets intended to be held
for an indefinite period of time, which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes
in interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices or those financial assets that are not classified
in any of the three preceding categories. Available-for-safe financial assets include non quoted
investments in subsidiaries.
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Notes to the annual accounts {continued)
31 December 2009

Note 2 - Significant accounting policies (continued)
(if) Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity and
available-for-sale are recognised on value date. Loans and advances are recognised when cash
is advanced to the borrowers,

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets
not carried at fair value through profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets except for investments in subsidiaries and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and advances and
held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method
less impairment. Non quoted investments in subsidiaries that are not classified as held for sale
are classified in the Available-for-sale portfolio and are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss are included in the income statement in the period in which they
arise. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets are recognised directly in equity, until the financial asset is derecognised or impaired at
which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

However, interest calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in the income
staterment.

(i) Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is dereccgnised when:

- Therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

- The Bank retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in fult without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or

- The Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Bank’s continuing involvement
in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred
asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Bank could be required to repay.
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Notes to the annual accounts (continued)
31 December 2009

Note 2 - Significant accounting policies (continued)

When continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or purchased option {including a
cash settled option or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Bank's
continuing involvement is the amount of the transferred asset that the Bank may repurchase,
except that in the case of a written put option (including a cash settled option or similar
provision) on an asset measured at fair value, the extent of the Bank's continuing involvement is
limited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.

Financial liabilities other than derivatives
(i} Classification

The Bank classifies its financial liabilities other than derivatives in the following categories:
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost and Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss. The Bank uses the fair value option either when:

- it eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise from measuring liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases; or

- A group of financial liabilities is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy, and
information about the Bank is provided internally on that basis to the entity's key
management personnel.

(if} Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Interest-bearing liabilities — other than financial liabilities at fair value — are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
liabilities are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value through the
income statement.

{iii} Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income
statement.
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Note 2 - Significant accounting policies (continued)
Derivative financial instruments
(i) Classification

Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments or a financial guarantee contract. Gains
and losses on investments held for trading are recognised in the income statement. The Bank
assesses whether embedded derivatives are required to be separated from the host contracts
when the Bank becomes party to the contract. Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required.

(i} Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial
recognition, derivative financial instruments are restated at fair value. The method of
recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends on whether the derivatives are
designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the risk being hedged.

Derivatives are carried as assets when their fair value is positive and as liabilities when their fair
value is negative.

{iii} Trading

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are accounted for as trading instruments.
The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value of trading derivatives is recognised immediately
in the income statement.

(iv) Hedging

The Bank may use derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange
and interest rate risks arising from operational, financing and investment activities. Where there
is a hedging relationship between a derivative instrument and a related item being hedged, the
hedging instrument is measured at fair value. The treatment of any resuiting gains and losses is
set out below. :

A hedging relationship exists when:

- atthe inception of the hedge there is formal documentation of the hedge:;

- the hedge is expected to be highly effective throughout the period and prospectively;
the effectiveness of the hedge can be reliably measured;

for hedges of a forecasted transaction, the transaction is highly probable and presents an
exposure to variations in cash flows that could ultimately affect net profit or loss.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, the Bank has classified hedges as fair value hedges and
cash flow hedges.
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Note 2 - Significant accounting policies (continued)

Fair value hedges

The change in the fair value of a hedging derivative is recognised in the income statement. The
change in the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as a part
of the carrying value of the hedged item and is also recognised in the income statement.

For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortised cost, the adjustment to carrying
value is amortised through the income statement over the remaining term to maturity. Any
adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged financial instrument for which the effective
interest rate method is used, is amortised through the income statement.

Amortisation may begin as soon as an adjustment exists and shall begin no later than when the
hedged item ceases to be adjusted for changes in its fair value attributable to the risk being
hedged.

If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately in the
income statement.

When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged item, the subsequent
cumulative change in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged risk is
recognised as an asset or liability with a corresponding gain or loss recognised in the income
statement. The changes in the fair value of the hedging instrument are also recognised in the
income statement.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised directly in
equity, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Amounts taken to equity are transferred to the income statement when the hedged transaction
affects profit or loss, such as when the hedged financial income or financial expense is
recognised or when a forecast sale occurs. Where the hedged item is the cost of a non financial
asset or non financial liability, the amounts taken to equity are transferred to the initial carrying
amount of the non financial asset or liability.

If the forecast transaction or firm commitment is no longer expected to occur, amounts
previously recognised in equity are transferred to the income sfatement. If the hedging
instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover, or if its
designation as a hedge is revoked, amounts previously recognised in equity remain in equity
until the forecast transaction or firm commitment occurs.

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the Bank has no cash flow hedged transactions.
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Note 2 — Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Bank are those contracts that require a payment to
be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at
the higher of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
reporting date and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements

The Bank enters into purchases (sales) of investments under agreements to resell (repurchase)
substantially identical investments at a certain date in the future at a fixed price. Investments
purchased subject to commitments to resell them at future dates are not recognised. The
amounts paid are recognised in loans to either banks or customers. The advances are shown
as collateralized by the underlying security. Investments sold under repurchase agreements
continue to be recognized in the statement of financial position and are measured in accordance
with the accounting policy of the category to which they relate. The proceeds from the sale of
the investments are reported as liabilities to either banks or customers.

The difference between the sale and repurchase considerations is recognised on an accrual
basis over the period of the transaction and is included in interest.

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position when the Bank has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and the transactions are intended to be settled on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

The Bank assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets

is impaired. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. impairment losses are recognised in the income statement.
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Note 2 - Significant accounting policies (continued)

Indicators of impairment include:
- Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;
- Abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- The Bank has granting to the borrower, for economic or legal reasons relating to the
borrower's financial difficulty, a concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

- It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
rearganisation;

- The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

In addition, objective evidence of impairment for an investment in an equity instrument includes
information about significant changes with an adverse effect that have taken place in the
technological, market, economic or legal environment in which the issuer operates, and
indicates that the cost of the investment in the equity instrument may not be recovered. A
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument below
its cost is also objeclive evidence of impairment.

The recoverable amount of the Bank's investments in held-to-maturity securities and loans and
advances carried at amortised cost is estimated as the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition of these financial assets). Advances with a short duration are not discounted.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement. If, in a subsequent period, the
amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor's
credit rating), the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance
account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in the income statement.

An impairment foss in respect of an investment in an equity instrument classified as available-
for-sale is not reversed through the income statement. If the fair value of a debt instrument
classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the income statement, the impairment
loss shall be reversed, with the amount of the reversal recognised in the income statement.

In addition, the Bank proceeds with an estimation of a potential collective impairment allowance
against exposures which, although not specifically identified as requiring a specific allowance,
have a greater risk of default than when originally granted. This takes into consideration facters
such as deterioration in country risk, industry and technological obsclescence, as well as
identified structural weaknesses or deterioration in cash flows.
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Note 2 - Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

The Bank recognises the cost of replacing part of a property, plant and equipment item at
incurrence in the carrying amount of this item if that cost is incurred if it is probable that the
future economic benefits embodied with the item will flow to the Bank and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All other costs are recognised in the income statement as an
expense as incurred.

ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of
materials, direct labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads.

Depreciation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment. Where parts of an item of
property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate
items of property, plant and equipment. Land is not depreciated. The estimated useful lives are
as follows (on a straight line basis):

- buildings 40 years
- transformation costs 5-10 years
- fixtures and fittings 5 years

An item of property, plan and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset is included in the income statement in the year the asset is
derecognised.

The asset's residual value, if not insignificant, and useful fives and methods of depreciation are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each financial year end.

Intangible asseis

Intangible assets, mainly composed of software acquired by the Bank, are measured on initial
recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, they are carried at cost less accumulated
armortisation and accumulated impairment losses. The estimated useful lives of software are as
follows: 4 to 5 years on a straight line basis.

(Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference

between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in
the income statement in the year the asset is derecognised.

=20 -



Société Europeenne de Banque
Sociéte Ananyme

Notes to the annual accounts (continued)
31 December 2009

Note 2 — Significant accounting policies (continued)
Other assets
Other assets are stated at cost less impairment.
Impairment of non financial assets

The Bank assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Bank estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset’'s recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded
subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the income statement in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset, except, if any, for
property previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to equity. In this case the
impairment is also recognised in equity up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

For assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date as {o whether there is any indication
that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such indication exists, the Bank makes an estimate of the recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that
is the case the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That
increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in pricr years. Such reversal
is recognised in the income statement unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which
case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.
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Note 2 — Significant accounting policies (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and
on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

Cash and cash equivalents include the following reserve: credit institutions established in
Luxembourg are required to hold minimum reserves with the Luxembourg Central Bank. These
deposits represent 2% of some of their liabilities and are considered as not available.
Compliance with the reserve requirement is determined on the basis of the institutions’ average
daily reserve holdings over the maintenance period, thus reserves of credit institutions can vary
from one day to another following their treasury management, the money market or their
expectations in interest rates.

Pension plan

The Bank contributes to a defined contribution retirement pian located with an external
insurance company.

Yearly contributions to the plan are disclosed under Note 24.
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event and when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and when a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligaticn. Where the Bank expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed,
for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset
but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is
presented in the income statement net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of
money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, where
appropriate, the risk specific to the Kability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as an interest expense.

Other liabilities

Other liabilities are stated at cost.

Interest income and expense

For all instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income and expense are recognised in
the income statement as they accrue, taking into account the effective yield of the asset and the
liability or an applicable floating rate. Interest income and expense include the amortisation of

any discount or premium or other differences between the initial carrying amount of an interest
bearing instrument and its amount at maturity calculated on an effective interest rate basis.
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Note 2 - Significant accounting policies (continued)
Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income arises on financial services provided by the Bank including cash
management services, brokerage services, investment advice and financial planning,
investment banking services, project and structured finance {ransactions, and asset
management services. Fee and commission income is recognised when the corresponding
service is provided.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised in the income statement when the Bank's right to receive the
payment is established.

Taxes
Current income tax

No current taxes are recorded considering the tax integration since 2002 with the Luxembourg
Bank’s mother company, which presents significant tax losses carried forward.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the
statement of financial position date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

- Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

- In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interest in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward and
unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits wili be available against which the asset can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred
tax assets is reviewed at each statement of financial position date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
statement of financial position date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.
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Note 2 — Significant accounting policies continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date.

Current tax and deferred tax relating to items recognised directly in equity are also recognised in
equity and not in the income statement.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Note 3 - Financial risk management
(a) Strategies in using financial instruments

The Risk Management function supports the risk identification and measurement processes by
providing details and own assessments, proposes risk management policies and approaches
compliant with regulatory and the ultimate parent company requirements.

The Corporate Banking and Credit Risk function provides details, own assessments and
complies with regulatory and ultimate parent company requirements with regards to credit risk.

The Accounting Department provides the capital data details and supports the reconciliation
with the supervisory capital.

The Compliance function encompasses all measures aiming to avoid that the Bank incurs any
loss, financial or not, due to the fact it does not comply with applicable laws and regulations. It is
an independent function that identifies, assesses, advises, monitors and reports on the Bank's
compliance risk.

The Organization & Human Resources Division assures adequate organizational framework
and clear lines of responsibilities, with relevant documentation.

The Internal Audit provides an independent, periodic and comprehensive review of the
processes and compliance with regulatory and Group requirements,

Roles and responsibilities of the Bank's Bodies and Departments/Functions have been defined
in coordination with the ultimate parent company.
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Note 3 - Financial risk management (continued)
(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Bank will incur a loss because its customers, clients or
counterparties failed to discharge their contractual obligations.
Credit risk arises due to:

Exposure to corporate and private clients;

Exposure to institutional counterparties.
The Bank credit risk management is based on the commercial and risk strategy drawn up by the
Management and validated by the Board of Directors. The main principles are as follows:

The Bank grants credits in priority to corporate clients who are also clients of the Group,

Calculation is made for all new credit transactions of the impact on capital requirements.
The objective is to maintain the adequate ratic of the own funds beyond the 8% required by
local regulation;

- Each new customer relation must be approved by the "Committee of acceptance of new
customers and operations”;

- The main exposures are towards the ultimate parent company;
- Maost of corporate loans are collateralised by guarantees (cash or securities);

- The Bank does not systematically require a 100% collateral as a guarantee. It depends on
the reputation of the borrower.

Credit risk is assessed by reviewing the topics as follows:
Large exposure;
Credit limits and collaterals;
Credit lines;
Ratings;
Exposures by country.

The Bank has in place a manua! of procedures, which describes the controls, review and report
regarding the credit risk. A periodic reporting on credit risk is made to the Audit Committee.
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Note 3 - Financial risk management (continued)

(i) Maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of any collateral and other credit
enhancements

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the
statement of financial position, including derivatives. The maximum exposure is shown before
the effect of mitigation through the use of collateral agreements but after deduction of

impairments.

(in EUR)

Maximum exposure

Maximum exposure

Cash and cash balances with central banks
Financial assets held for trading

Financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss

Available-for-sale financial assets
Held-to-maturity investments

Loans and advances

Derivatives held for hedging

QOther assets
Total

2009 2008
71329080 110 030 806
230 464 924 128 240 073
234 793 821 285 342 604
8563 004 898 632 288 709
181 312 848 25356 227
7953223702 7 528 997 204
22 910040 84 084 283
6674712 5 801 449

9553 714 035

8 800 141 355

Contingent liabilities

Commitments
Total

78478735 134 589 198
46 603 712 140992 797
125 082 447 275 581 995

Where financial instruments are recorded at fair value, the amounts shown above represent the
current credit risk exposure but not the maximum risk exposure that could arise in the future as
a result of change in values.

For more detail on the maximum credit exposure to credit risk for each class of financial
instruments, references shall be made to the specific notes.
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(i) Credit quality per class of financial assefs
For classification of non-performing exposures in the various risk categories {doubtful loans,
substandard exposures and past due exposures), the Bank applies regulation issued by its

ultimate mother company.

The table below gives a breakdown by categories of gross financial assets and credit quality
{except for cash balances with central banks):

Performing Doubtful Substandard Past due
(in EUR) assets assets exposures exposures TOTAL
2009 2009 2009 2009 2009

Financial assets held for trading 230 464 924 - --- 230 464 924
Financial assets designated at fair

value through profit or loss 234 793 821 --- --- --- 234 793 821
Available-for-sale financial assets 853 004 898 - --- 853 004 898
Held-to-maturity investments 181 312 848 - --- 181 312 848
Loans and advances 7 942 216 053 18 841 756 --- --- 7 961 057 809
Total 9 441 792 544 18 841 756 9 460 634 300

Performing Doubtful Substandard Past due
{in EUR) assets assets exposures exposures TOTAL
2008 2008 2008 2008 2008

Financial assets held for trading 128 240 073 128 240 073
Financial assets designated at fair

value through profit or loss 285 342 604 - - - 285 342 604
Available-for-sale financial assets 632 288 709 632 288 709
Held-to-maturity investments 25 356 227 --- 25 356 227
Loans and advances 7 533 341 364 1924 848 — --- 7 535 266 212
Total 8 604 568 977 1924 848 --- 8 606 493 825
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Note 3 - Financial risk management (continued)

(iii) Credit quality per class of financial assets

The gross and net exposures of foans and advances are as follows (in EUR):

Individual value

Collective value

In 2009 Gross exposure adjustments adjustments Net exposure

Performing loans 7942 216 053 -1 364 192 -1 647 374 7 939 204 487
Doubtful loans 18 841 756 -4 822 541 --- 14 019 215
Substandard exposures - - -
Past due exposures --- --- -—
Total 7 961 057 B09 -6 186 733 -1 647 374 7 953 223 702

Individual value Collective value

in 2008 Gross exposure adjustments adjustments Net exposure

Performing loans 7 533 341 364 -2 693 687 -1 650 473 7 528 997 204
Doubtful loans 1924 848 -1 924 848 --- ---
Substandard exposures --- - --- -
Past due exposures --- --- - ---
Total 7 535 266 212 -4 618 535 -1 650 473 7 528 997 204

{iv) Concentration of risks

In order to avoid a too high concentration of risks, the Bank has to respect the following limits on
a permanent basis:

- The total risk exposure towards a single client or group of connected clients must not
exceed 25% of the own funds of the Bank;

- The total risk exposure towards the parent undertaking or subsidiaries of the Bank must not
exceed 20% of the own funds of the Bank;

- The total value of all large exposures must not exceed 800% of the own funds of the Bank.

As at 31 December 2008, the lending limit amounted fo EUR 126 million (2008: EUR 96 million)
and - except for intergroup operations and one sovereign risk - no borrower exceeded this
amount. The main exposure relates to 24 borrowers or group of borrowers (2008: 20 borrowers
or group of borrowers) with financing between EUR 12.5 and EUR 1 850 million each (2008:
between EUR 14 — 100 million).

The Bank produces large exposures reports, which are the main tests of exposure

concentration, as they inciude exposures to individual clients as well as group of counterparties
and banking counterparties. They are communicated to the Management on a regular basis.
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Notes to the annual accounts {continued)

31 December 2009

Note 3 — Financial risk management (continued)

(v} Geographical allocation of risks

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the distribution by geographical area of the risks held in the
Securities (except for trading positions} and Loans and advances before taking into account
collateral held and other credit enhancements can be summarized as follows:

(in EUR)

[taly

USA

Japan

France

Spain
Luxembourg
Belgium
Germany
United Kingdomn
Switzerland
Nethertands
Poland

Panama

Russia

Croatia
Bosnia-Erzegovina
Hungary
Romania

Other

Total

2009 2008
Securities Loans and Securities Lecans and
{HTM, AFS, FVPL) advances (HTM, AFS, FVPL) advances
1195 221 047 5 862 225 948 804 214 513 4 845 203 344
6524 431 88 415 236
- 4 639 394 - 4785 837
6 827 302 8 660 711
99869 770 1758631 35 301 303 4 437 623
2849610 233 157 742 2311185 432 026 150
3384 002 91 267 795
- 3 444 387 - 7040172
26 107 523 83 832 148
13 481 359 52 483 654 13 468 522 69 294 123
37 569 416 9329 126 40 748 844 8908 138
— 1 515 800 1 829 806
4 514 208 10 358 765
634 982 811 777 579 577
- 590 613 692 508 193 657
15 075 288 20172 208
- 251 331 403 252 285 862
— 165 702 231 193 220 183
10 019 465 79 606 039 46 943 173 121 485 869
1 269 111 567 7963 223 702 942 987 540 7 528 997 204

{vi) Industry sector allocation of risks

As at 31 December 2008 and 2008, the breakdown by industry sector of the risks held in the
Securities (except for trading positions) and Loans and advances before taking into account
collateral held and cther credit enhancements can be summarized as follows:

2009 2008

(in EUR) Securities Loans Securities Loans

(HTM, AFS, FVPL) and advances (HTM, AFS, FVPL) and advances
Financial institutions 1 058 507 003 7 790 881 122 657 579 704 7 335885783
Public sector 200 634 794 --- 250 106 533 --
Other industries 9869 770 145 554 856 35 301 303 161 217 406
Individuals 16 787 724 31894 015
Total 1269 111 567 7 953 223 702 942 987 540 7 528 997 204
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Notes to the annual accounts (continued)
31 December 2009

Note 3 — Financial risk management (continued)
(¢} Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the possibility that an institution is unable to meet its payment
obligations due to its incapacity to liquidate assets or obtain adequate funding from the market
(funding liquidity risk) or due to the difficulty/impossibility of easily unwinding positions in
financial assets without negatively and significantly affecting their price due to the inadequate
market depth or temporary market disruptions {market liquidity risk).

The Bank monitors future expected cash inflow and outflow. Its policy throughout the year has
been, at all times, to maintain sufficient high quality liquid assets to cover the expected cash
outflow in order to stay within the limits for the 0 to 8 and 9 to 30 day periods set by the Board of
Directors.

The customer deposit base represents a stable source of funding. The ultimate parent company
is the main depositor, followed by corporate clients and institutionals.

The Bank avoids any concentration risk towards counterparties.

The Bank has developed a reporting system towards the Head of the Treasury Department, the
Management Board, and Internal Audit:

- a weekly list of the 20 largest depositors highlighting the percentage of the customer
exposure compared to the total of the deposits;

- weekly "Liquidity Gap” report until July 2009 / daily report since that date.

The Risk Management has the following missions:
ensure supervision on a continuous basis;
control the respect of the liquidity limits (internal and external);
inform the Management Board about all going beyond the fixed limits;
report to the Audit Committee,;
to be informed of all new regulations (internal / external) to be set up.

-30-



I—\m|

S8¢ 8 oyl £8l Lol gLs b 69% 956 ZL0 S [e10]
vEG £ 3 s z5 8iv L 6EY LE6 SY6 ¥ 1500 PasiNOWE JB PAINSBALL §31)I|IGE| [BIoUBLI4
651 iy 6t 21 8i ZL 61 $50| Jo Jyoud yBnosyy anjeA Jiej Je SaNIQE) [BIouBUIY
z62 601 z8 9z ZL £l 0% Buibpay

104 I3y SaAleALRp puE Bulped) 10} piay Soniiqen [eueul

sieak SIEQA G > sIe3h 7 > Jeak | > syjuoWw g > SYHIOW ¢ > yjuow
|eloL Gz sieak 7 2 1eak | 2 Syow g z syjuouw ¢z Yuow = L > 2007 13qadaq 1£
006 SEL L L) 4 LEL L7 0Z6 0ES | 1i9¢% 1Bjol
958 8 vl (39:°] L8 or €06 0Eg | €S9 ¥ 1500 PIsiHoLUe 1B DRUNSESL Saliliqe! [ loueuld
[43 [#4 Ll 62 Z Z - $80| 10 Jyoid YBNoIY) BN(EA 1B} JE SBINIGE! [BIOUBUl4
Zrl £5 €z i z Gt z v Buibpay

10j play SaABALSP pue Buipe) Joj play SaIGe!| [BIoUBUL

sieak SIeaA G > s1esh 7 > Jeak o> SYUoW § > SUYJUoW € > YIuoLs
lejoy &< sieaf zz leak 1z Syuow gz Syuow g2 Yjuouwl | 2 b > 6007 3quiE3q I¢

"919B} g00Z SU} Ul PSPNISUl JOU 8JE SjSaIBjUl SESIaUM 's}saaiul Buipnioul ‘(YT UCHILW Ul) SMO)) USED palunodsipun
[ENJORIUOD BY] ale 3|qe) 00¢ SUi Ul PasOosip Sjunowe sy] uolisod [BOUBLY JO JUSLUSIEIS aU) JO SJep 8y} 1B Sonunjew [enjoenuod Bumiews)
Aq ysu Aupinby BuiBeuew Joj play sailliqe|| {EIoUBLY SANBALISD PUB SABBALISP-UCU Japun jueg ay) Aq ajqeded smojy Useo ay) Juasald moleq sa|qe) sy

(ponunuos) Juswebeueul ¥si [ejoueUl{ — § 930N

6007 sequiava(q g
{panunuo9) SIUNCIDE [BNUUE Y} 0} SSION

SWALOUY 9121008
snbueg ap suussdoing 9191008



Société Européenne de Banque
Société Anonyme

Notes to the annual accounts (continued)
31 December 2009

Note 3 — Financial risk management (continued)

The breakdown by sector of financial liabilities is as follows (in EUR):

Government . . . ,
2009 and central Other public  Financial Non-financed Other Total
banks entities institutions companies

Financial liabilities held
for trading and for - .- 147 344 106 8 793332 156 137 438
hedging

Financial liabilities

carried at fair value - - 98 219 467 - 98 219 467
Financial liabilities

measured at amortised 869 097 - 8448 595 043 87 378 238 231764 579 8 768 606 957
cost
Total 869 097 --- B694158616 87 378 238 240 557 911 9 022 963 862

Government . . . .
2008 and central  Otherpublic  Financial — Non-financed Other Total
entities institutions companies
banks
Financial liabilities held
for trading and for -- -- 215 406 401 61 198 145 15983 928 292 588 474
hedging
Financial liabilities 158749058 . 158749058
carried at fair value
Financial liabilities
measured at amortised 657 904 49002 119 7 467 195037 56 036 110 360 901 011 7 933792 181
cost
Total 657 904 49002119 7 841 350 496 117 234 255 376 884 939 8385129713
The breakdown by geographical areas is as follows (in EURY.
Other European

2009 Zone EURO Countries Other Total
Financial liabilities held for

trading and for hedging 132 767 223 14 567 304 8 802 911 156 137 438
‘Ijlar:j\;\mal liabilities carried at fair 98 219 467 98 219 467
Financial liabilittes measured at

amortised cost 7 726 667 385 618 020 754 423 918 818 8 768 606 957
Total 7 957 654 075 632 588 058 432721729 9 022 963 862

Other European

2008 Zone EURO Countries Other Total
Flnatnmal liabilities hn_ald for 292 588 474 o —— 292 588 474
trading and for hedging

‘Ij;r:jgmal liabilities carried at fair 158 749 058 . - 158 749 058
Financial liabilities measured at 6 398 489 460 813 524 708 721778 013 7 933 792 181
amortised cost

Total 6 849 826 992 813 6524 708 721778 13 8385129 713
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Notes to the annual accounts (continued)
31 December 2008

Note 3 - Financial risk management (continued)

{d) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate
due to changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity
prices.

The Bank’s primary financial instruments comprise money markets assets and liabilities, some
cash and liquid resources and various other items that arise directly from its operations.

The Bank enters into derivatives transactions, which are mainly interest rate swaps {(*IRS”) and
forward foreign currency contracts. Those derivatives are held from an economic point of view
for the purpose of monitoring the Bank'’s interest rate risk and currency risk respectively.

The Treasury Department is part of Dealing Room and is responsible for managing the interest
rate risk and foreign exchange risk generated within the Bank and for maintaining them within
risk limits validated by the Board of Directors of the Bank.

To assess market risk, the Bank has put in place a reporting addressed fo the Management
Board, the Chief Financial Officer, the General Manager responsible for the market activities,
the Internal Audit, the Treasury Department and any other operational service responsible.

The Risk Management unit carries out its own analyses and assessments and the results are
communicated periodically to the Management Board, to the Treasury Department, to the Audit
Committee and to the Board of Directors:

a daily interest rate gap and limit controf,

a weekly VAR analysis until July 2009 / daily since that date.

The tendency of doing a mere frequently reporting has been confirmed on the last trimester in
the aim of performing a daily report on the interest rate risk.

The Bank has in place a manual of procedures for the Treasury Department and a Risk
Management Charter, which describe limits, treasury rules and controls.
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Notes to the annual accounts (continued)
31 December 2009

Note 3 - Financial risk management {continued)
(i) Interest rate risk

Averaqe interest rate

The average effective interest rates on financial instruments by main currencies for the year
ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

2009 2008
Assels Liabilities Assets Liabilities
EUR 1.3947 0.8759 3.8452 3.2773
Usho 0.3637 0.2790 0.9247 0.68779

The tables below present the financial assets and liabilities by repricing dates. Interest rate
sensitive assets and liabilities are classified in the respective categories according to the
interest rate repricing dates. For derivatives, the fair value of the instruments is used. Assets
and liabilities insensitive to interest rate risk are included in the undetermined category.

-34-



I@Mml

1S8J81UI JSMIELW Ul 9SERID8P JO 9SE3JOU)

‘RleAnnadsal /62 €42 ¥~ HN3 PUB 286 SLE ¥ + HNT AQ XE) 210jaq SWO0U] 1Sa48)U1 84} S2UaNjL pjnom sajel
dggz e ‘6007 Jequedse( LE 1B SB Sall|igelj pue sjasse JUncooe ojul Bue) aaoge aisy pauyep se suondwnsse sy Japun

06 or gLl 90z | i T S6v € 8¥8 | salj|iqet] [elouBUY |EIOL
89l 8 € GS 90z | LIEZ S6F € 69 1 1500 PSZIUOWE 1B PUNSEALU SaIIgel [eloueuly
86 i€ L9 - $50| 10 Jo.d
yBnoiy} anjea liey 18 pajeubisap sagey jermueuld

] 951 Burbpay Jof pay
seAleAusp pue Buipes) Jo) piay sanlligel] [eloveuldy

9IS 6 058 PEE L 86V ¥ 996 951 | t4 74 S}9SSE [elouBUY (€10
£56 ¢ LE9 158 €96 € 96 120} £ES S30UBADE PUE SUBOT
(X:]8 =74 9g1 SIBLSAAUL AjHiNjeW-0}-plaH
£58 0ey vz ot 621 gl S}aSSE {BIOUBYY S[BS-10J-9|0B|IBAY
o4 €Lz ZZ $50] Jo Jyouid
ubnouyy anfea ney Je pajeublsap sjasse jeloueul

£52 LEL zzl BuiBpay Joj pray
sanleauap pue Guipel) 10} pjay S1asse |eloueul

(¥ L2 $HHUE] [B4JUSD YIIm S30UELEQ
yses pue ysen

12101 Sieak SIeah g > SIeaA Z » Jesh L > SYUoW g > syuow ¢ > Yjuow (N3 4o uol|iw uyy
paulunelspuq §% sieah Z 2 Jesh | 2 syjuow g = syjuow ¢ € yuow | 2 > 600z Jeqwiasaq LE

B00C Jequadaq |t

(panu3uo9) sjUNOOOE [enuUE 8y} 03 SIJON

swAuouy 9191008
anbueg ap suusadoing 3191908

(penunuoa) Juewabeuew ¥siJ [BIDUBUIH — £ BJON



I@MI

1SaI8)ul 19)/BW Ul Bsea139p JO

‘AloAnoadsal | LE 680 L — MN3T PUE ZZ8 190 | + HMNF AQ XB) 810)8q SWIODU| 1S349UI Sy} 82UaNjjul piNoM sajel

aseasoul dagz & 'gp0z Jequienad LE 1B SB SaNijIgel| pue s)asse Junocooe ojul Bupie) aAoge alay pauisp se suondwnsse ay) Jiepun

vec g - ari £81 oL 8IS | 69% 956 Lo s SaIqe |elRueuy |BJ0]
£€€6 L - L8 2% s Biv | BEY LE6 Zre ¥ 1503 pazIowe Je painsesilU salyjige) |eloueuld
651 iy ¥ i 81 zk 61 $50] 40 Jyoud yBnosyy
anjea Jigy Je pajeubissp sai|ige] [BIoueUl 4

262 - 601 Z8 - 9z Zl £l 0% BuiBpay Jo} piay sarjessp
pue Buiped) 1o} pjay saNjigel| [eloueLld

v6.L 8 9l £5¢€ €LG 605 948 | 246 bz A Sv6 2 sjasse (eloueuy [ejol
625 L =" LG (3474 744 g8l 1 €96 G161 08L¢ S80UBARE PUB SUROT
[r4 GZ - -- SjuaLLySaALl AJUNJBW-0}-ploH
zeo gl 6l zLL 9.2 06 A} 6Z zzg $195SE |B{OUBUY B|BS-104-B|qR|IBAY
98z 192 61 $50) o Jyoud
yBnouyy anjea Jiey je pajeubisop S)aSsSe |BIouBUl 4

4% 9 g5l 8 I 14 4 e BuiBpay s04 piay
saanealap pue Buipes) Joj p|ay S19SsE |BIDUBUIY

0Ll Okl SHUEQ [BUSD Ylm SSOUE[EG
YSBO DUB YSED

sieak sJeal g » sieah g > Jeak L > SYyjuow g » syjuous ¢ > yuow (yN3 Jo volw ui)

e0L pauluuslapun gz sieak g 2 Jeak 1 2 SLIUOW § 2 syjuous ¢ 2 yuow | = L> 2002 Joqwadeq L

600¢ sequiad=q g

{ponunuo2) s3UNOJIJE [ENUUE 3Y) 0} SIJON

alAuouy 9121005

anbueg sp suuaadoing 319100

(panunuoa) Juswebeuei )SL [BIDUBUI{ — £ OJON



Société Européenne de Banque

Societé Anonyme

Notes to the annual accounts (continued)

31 December 2009

Note 3 - Financial risk management {continued)}

(e} Foreign exchange rate risk

Foreign exchange rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in foreign exchange rates.

Specific limits are set-up based on the open positions in foreign currencies. In particular, for
transactions invalving derivative instruments, ad hoc limits are established.

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the financial assets and liabilities denominated in EUR, in
USD and in other currencies are as follows (in EUR);

31 December 2009 EUR uso Other Total
Cash and cash balances with central

banks 71319 611 6135 3344 71 329 090
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss and held for trading 427 678 506 10 824 37 569 415 465 258 745
Available-for-sale financial assets 839 523 537 . 13 481 361 853 004 898
Held-to-maturity investments 181 312 848 - - 181 312 848
Loans and advances 6 938 122 490 218 856 276 796 244 936 7 953 223 702
Hedging derivatives 22 910 040 22 910 040
Total financial assets 8 480 867 032 218 873 235 847 299 056 9 547 039 323
31 December 2009 EUR usD Other Total
Financial liabilties at fair value through

profit or loss and held for trading 206 882 048 9 579 28 556 834 235 448 461
Financial liabilities measured at

amortized cost and deposits from

central banks 7 673 051 613 695 984 280 399 571 064 8 768 606 957
Hedging derivatives 18 908 444 - - 18 908 444
Total financial liabilities 7 898 842 105 695 993 859 428 127 898 9022 963 862
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Notes to the annual accounts (continued)

31 December 2009

Note 3 - Financial risk management (continued)

31 December 2008 EUR uso Other Total
Cash and cash balances with central

banks 110 003 784 12 388 14 634 110 030 806
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or foss and held for trading 364 206 465 49 376 212 413 582 677
Available-for-sale financial assets 618 820 187 i 13 468 522 632 288 709
Held-lo-maturity investments 25 356 227 i i 25 356 227
Loans and advances 6 465 251 667 462 359 691 601 385 846 7 528 997 204
Hedging derivatives 84 084 283 - 84 084 283
Total financial assets 7 667 722 613 462 372 079 664 245 214 8 794 339 906
Financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss and held for trading 382 721 639 24 902 959 407 824 508
Financial liabilities measured at

amortized cost and deposits from

central banks 7017 806 183 632 532 274 283 453 724 7933 792 181
Hedging derivatives 43712 934 -- 43712 834
Total financial liabilities 7 444 240 756 632 532 274 308 356 683 8385129 713

(f) Capital management

The Bank is subject to the local regulation (CSSF Circular 06/273 as amended) in relation to the
capital adequacy ratio. The Bank calculates the simplified solvency ratio, which is followed on a

quarterly basis.

As of 31 December 2008, the solvency ratio of the Bank is 13,16% (2008: 15,15%), above the

limit of 8%.

(g) Operational risk

The operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed processes, people and

systems or from external events. This definition includes legal risk.

Segregation of duties, internal procedures, and technological systems in force mitigate the risk
of [osses due to errors or inadequacies.
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Notes to the annual accounts (continued)
31 December 2009

Note 3 - Financial risk management (continued)

(h) Derivative financial instruments

During 2009 and 2008, in order to manage efficiently its treasury position, the Bank used mainly
foreign exchange transactions and interest rate swaps.

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the notional amount and fair value of the derivatives held

for trading are as follows (in EUR):

2009 2008
Notional amount Fair value Notional amount Fair value
Assets

Interest rate instruments 137 750 000 1264 787 - -
Currency instruments 1345 067 436 98 320 700 1103 691 643 128 201 581
1482 817 436 99 585 487 1103 691 643 128 201 581

Liabilities
Interest rate instruments 3583 655 854 67 786 624 864 856 041 111 624 297
Currency instruments 1644 708 665 69 358 165 1558 189 722 137 178 Q72
5 228 364 519 137 144 789 2423 045763 248 802 369

As mentioned in Note 2, only fair value hedge is applied by the Bank. Hedging items are as

follows (in EUR):

2009 2008
Notional amount Fair value Notional amount Fair value
Assets

interest rate instruments - - 140 226 829 11 699 136
Currency instruments 160 429 761 22 910 040 545 493 445 72 385 147
160 429 761 22 910 040 685 720 274 84 084 283

Liabilities
Interest rate instruments 1 327 869 685 18 908 444 2 730 000 000 43712 934
Currency instruments --- -~ --- -
1327 869 685 18 908 444 2 730 000 000 43712 974

As mentioned in Note 2, only fair value hedge is applied by the Bank. Hedged items are as

follows (in EUR):

2009
Fair value

2008
Fair value

Loans and advances

1559 984 117

3476 431 960
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Notes to the annual accounts {continued)
31 December 2009

Note 3 -~ Financial risk management {continued)
(1) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

The following table summarises the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and
liabilities measured at amortized cost in the statement of financial position (in million of EUR).

Carrying amount Fair value

2009 2008 2009 2008
Assets
Held-to-maturity investments 181 25 188 26
Loans and advances 7 953 40563 9 358 40563
Liabilities
Financial liabifities measured at
amortised cost 8 768 7 933 7710 7933

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities corresponds to the amount at which the
instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale.

Fair value hierarchy

As at 31 December 2008, the Bank uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing
the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.
This {evel includes listed equity securities and debt instruments on exchanges (for
example, London Stock Exchange, Frankfurt Stock Exchange, New York Stock Exchange)
and exchanges traded derivatives like futures (for example, Nasdag, S&P 500).

- Level 2: techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair
value are observable, either directly or indirectly.

- Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair
value that are not based on observable market data.
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Notes to the annual accounts {(continued)

31 December 2009

Note 3 - Financial risk management (continued)

(in EUR) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets held for trading

- Derivatives held for trading - 99 585 487 --- 99 585 487

- Equity instruments 10 825 --- == 10 825

- Debt instruments 130 868 612 --- --- 130 868 612
Financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss

- Debt instruments 197 224 406 37 569 415 - 234793 81
Derivatives held for hedging --- 22 910 040 - 22 910 040
Available-for-sale financial assets

- Equity instruments {other than

investments in subsidiaries) - 2 600 000 --- 2600000

- Debt instruments 836 673 928 - - 836 673 928
Total financial assets 1164 777 771 162 664 942 - 1327 442713
Financial liabilities held for trading 84 205 137 144 789 - 137 228 994
Financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit and loss - 98 219 467 --- 98 219 467
Derivatives held for hedging -— 18 908 444 --- 18 908 444
Total financial liabilities 84 205 254 272 700 - 254 356 905

During the reporting year ending 31 December 2009, there were no transfers between Level 1
and Level 2 categories, and no transfers into and out of Leve! 3 category.

Note 4 — Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash in equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’ maturity from the date
of acquisition, including cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

{in EUR) 2009 2008

Cash and cash balances with central banks 71329 090 110 030 806
Loans and advances to banks with maturity
< 3 months

1561274 542
1632 603 632

2630076 786
2740 107 592

In accordance with the requirements of the European Central Bank, the Luxembourg Central Bank
implemented effective 1S‘January 1999, a system of mandatory minimum reserves applicable to all
Luxembourg credit institutions. The amount outstanding as at 31 December 2009 is EUR 71 063 512
{2008: EUR 109 770 000).
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31 December 2009

Note 5 - Financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated at fair value through profit

orloss
{in EUR) 2009 2008
Net carrying amount Net carrying amount
Financial assets held for trading
Derivatives held for trading 99 585 487 128 201 581
Securities held for trading
- equity instruments 10 825 8 926
- debt securities 130 868 612 29 566
230 464 924 128 240 073
2009 2008
Net carrying amount Net carrying amount
Financial assets designated at inception
at fair value through profit or loss -
Securities 234 793 821 285 342 604
234 793 821 285 342 604

At 31 December 2008 and 2008, a significant part of these securities is quoted.

Note 6 — Available-for-sale financial assets

(in EUR) 2009 2008
Net carrying amount Net carrying amount
Quoted debt instruments issued by:
Credit institutions 836 673 928 616 060 554
836 673 928 616 060 554

As at 31 December 2009, the fair value of the available-for-sale financial assets which are scld
under repurchase agreements amounts to EUR 523 million - see Note 14
(2008: EUR 188.3 million).

(in EUR) 2009 2008
Net carrying amount Net carrying amount
Not quoted shares issued by:
Credit institutions 13 481 359 13 468 522
Corporate 249 611 659 633
Other 2 600 000 2100 000
16 330 970 16 228 155
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Notes to the annual accounts (continued)
31 December 2009

Note 6 — Available-for-sale financial assets

As at 31 December 2009, shares in affiliated undertakings, which are classified in this category,
where the Bank helds at least 20% are as follows:

Company Registered office Percentage owned

Lux Gest Asset Management S.A. Luxembourg 99.97%

intesa Sanpaolo Private Bank (Suisse) S A Lugano 99.99%

Luxiprivilége Conseil S.A. Luxembourg 50.00%

Note 7 — Held-to-maturity investments
2009 2008
Net carrying Fair Net carrying Fair
(in EUR) amount value amount value
Quoted debt instruments at
amortised cost issued by :
Financial institutions 155 990 548 161 443 174 - -
Public sector 25 322 300 26 408 250 25 356 227 25817 500
Total 181 312 848 187 851 424 25 356 227 25 817 500
Investments bearing a fixed interest rate amount to EUR 181 312 848 (2008: EUR 25 356 227).
No impairment loss was recognised on held-to-maturity investments in 2009 and 2008.
Note 8 — Loans and advances
2009 2008
Total net Total net
carrying of which: carrying of which:
{in EUR) amount Impairment amount impairment
Unquoted loans and
advances to:
Credit institutions 7 302 590 274 485 106 6 527 999 543
Private customers 16 787 724 586 356 31489 855 412 478
Corporate customers 633 845 704 6 762 645 969 507 806 5 856 530
7953 223 702 7 834107 7 528 997 204 6 269 008

Impairment allowance for loans and advances

As of 31 December 2009, the Bank has determined its collective impairment to EUR 1 647 374
(2008: EUR 1 650 473) and its individual impairment to EUR 6 186 733 (2008: EUR 4 618 535).
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Note 8 — Loans and advances (continued)

A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment losses for loans and advances is as follows

(in EURY:
2009
Impairment as at 1% January 6 269 008
Charge of the year / Transfers 4042 887
Recoveries/amounts written off -2477 788
Impairment as at 31 December 7 834 107

of which:
individual impairment 6 186 733
Collective impairment 1647 374
2008
Impairment as at 1* January 2874273
Charge of the year / Transfers 4 181 809
Recoveriesfamounts written off -787 074
Impairment as at 31 December 6 269 008

of which:
Individual impairment 4618 535
Collective impairment 1650473

Guarantees received as collateral

Loans and advances are secured by the following guarantees received by the Bank (in EUR}):

l.oans and advances
to customers

Loans and advances
to credit institutions

NET CARRYING AMOUNTS 650 633 428 7 302 590 274
Mortgage - -—
Real guarantees Securities -— -
2009 Other real guarantees 259 544 654 12 384 888
Government guarantees 31015 205 -

Personal guarantees . K
Credit Institutions guarantees 216 097 912 463 070 562
Total guarantees 506 657 771 475 455 450
NET CARRYING AMOUNTS 1 000 997 661 6 527 999 543
Marigage 1200 426
Real guarantees Securities 21182 801
2008 Other real guarantees 198 525 864
Government guarantees 117 655 516 ---

Personal guarantees ) .

Credit Institutions guarantees 211 452 943 828 023 281
Total guarantees 550 017 550 828 023 281
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Note 9 — Property, plant and equipment

L.and and Office Other
(In EUR) building equipment equipment Total
Costas at 1s‘January 26738 272 1717 928 8 044 075 36 500 275
Additions / Disposals / Transfers 91725 77 459 119 990 289174
Cost as at 31 December 2009 26 829 997 1 795 387 8 164 065 36 789 449
Accumulated depreciation as at
1 January 2009 -14 919 695 -1 448 292 -5 330 021 -21 698 008
Depreciation charge/Transfers -1178 156 -44 058 -569 571 -1 791 785
Accumulated depreciation as at
31 December 2009 -16 097 851 -1 492 350 -5 899 582 -23 489793
Net carrying amount as at
31 December 2009 10732146 303 037 2264473 13 299 656
Land and Office Other
{In EUR) building equipment equipment Total
Cost as at 1* January 26 505 005 1632 442 7 823 953 35 961 400
Additions / Disposals / Transfers 233 267 85 486 220122 538 875
Cost as at 31 December 2008 26 738 272 1717928 8044075 36 500 275
Accumulated depreciation as at
1% January 2008 -13672 789 -1 407 775 -4 727 279 -19 807 853
Depreciation charge / Transfers -1 246 896 -40 517 -602 742 -1 890 155
Accumulated depreciation as at
31 December 2008 -14 919 895 -1 448 282 -5 330 021 -21 698 008
Net carrying amount as at
31 December 2008 11 818 577 269 636 2714 054 14 802 267
Land and building are used by the Bank for its own needs.
Note 10 — Intangible assels

(in EUR) 2009 2008

Cost as at 1% January 107 457 107 456

Additions / Disposals --- 1

Cost as at 31 December 107 457 107 457

Accumulated depreciation as at 1% January 69172 -56 195

Depreciation charge -12 977 -12 977

Accumulated depreciation as at 31 December -82 149 -69172

Net carrying amount as at 31 December 25 308 38 285
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Note 11 — Tax expense, assets and liabilities

No current taxes are recorded considering the tax integration since 2002 with the Luxembourg
Bank’s Mother Company, which presents significant tax losses carried forward.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

(in EUR) 2009 2008

Deferred tax assets 12 137 272 -

Deferred tax liabilities -14 493 765 -

Tax liabilities -2 356 493 ---

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:
(in EUR) 1 January Income ] 31 December

2009 statement Equity 2009

Financial assets held for trading --- 12049 504 - -12049 504
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or
loss -—- 539 309 -— 539 309
Available-for-sale financial assets - -2 356 493 -2 356 493
Financial liabilities held for trading - 10 387 009 --- 10 387 009
Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss -- 185 028 - 185 028
Provisions and value adjustments --- 838 158 -—- 938 158
Net deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) --n --- -2 356 493 -2 356 493

The Bank records deferred taxes since 2009. As of 31 December 2009, full recognition of deferred
tax assets (through income statement} has not been performed by the Bank. They have heen

recorded to the same extent as deferred tax liabilities {through income statement) because tax

planning opportunity is not available that will create taxable profit in appropriate periods taken into
consideration the tax integration with the Bank’s Luxembourg Mother Company and its significant

tax losses carried forward.
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Note 12 — Other assets and other liabilities

(in EUR) 2009 _ 2008
Prepaid charges 214 931 239709
VAT 3975876 3297 117
Accrued commission income 696 331 1435212
Cther 1783574 829 411
Other assets 6674712 5801 449
{in EUR) 2009 2008
Social security charges 774 282 672 822
Income received in advance 132 263 181 122
Withholding taxes and VAT 5872171 4754 745
Administrative expenses to be paid 4 658 558 6 792 268
Accrued commission expenses 1235512 1849722
Short term payable and other sundry accounts 4 511 297 2425 353
Other liabilities : 17 184 083 16 676 032

Note 13 — Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

A portion of the bonds issued by the Bank is eligible, according to IAS 39, to fair value
option. Such items are fair valued using the quotations of the bonds available through
an external provider. The Bank has recognised in this caption the fair value of such
bonds and structured transactions. The bonds amount to EUR 69 662 633 (2008:
EUR 158 749 058), with a nominal value of EUR 68 782 000 (2008: EUR

160 836 000).
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Note 14 - Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

(in EUR)

Current accounts and amounts with period of notice
Term deposits
Deposits from credit institutions

Current assets and amounts with period of notice
Term deposits
Deposits from corporate customers

Current accounts

Term deposits

Other deposits

Deposits from private customers

Certificates of deposits

Debt securities in issue - non convertible
Bonds issued and Certificates of deposits
Total

of which:
Repurchase transactions
of which with related parties

~ 2009
Carrying
amount

461 746 595
3861883770

2008
Carrying
amount

293 430 486
22357325612

4 323 630 365

2529171998

444 725 730 419 021 745
1664 139 258 3 135 663 822
2108 864 988 3 554 685 5867

49170 317 61 675 537

175 0563 336 299 325 474

38 198 -

224 261 851 360 901 011

2110 980 656 577 392 248
— 910 983 4563

2 110 980 656 1488 375 701
B 767 737 860 7933134277
523 025 606 1605 370750
519 655 953 1528 058 038

In the context of its Euro Medium Term Notes Program, the Bank has issued securities, the
maximum amount of the program being EUR 4.5 billion. A significant part of the securities

issued hy the Bank are subscribed by itself.

In these annual accounts, in compliance with IFRS, the securities subscribed by the Bank are

offset against the securities issued.

Part of the securities subscribed by the Bank are sold under repurchase agreements.
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Note 15 — Provisions

_ Other
(in EUR) Litigations provisions Total
Provisions as at 1* January 2008 80108 308 925 389 033
Additions 675 000 - 675 000
Amounts used --- -308 925 -308 925
Provisions as at 31 december 2008 755 108 --- 755108
Additions 500 000" 910 598 1410 598
Amounts used -325 000 - -325 000
Amounts reversed -430 108 --- -430 108
Provisions as at 31 december 2009 500 000 910 598 1410 598

(1) This amount corresponds to a transfer of provision made in 2009 in relation with the transfer
of activity described in Note 1.
Note 16 — Shareholders’ equity
Issued capital

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the Bank's subscribed and paid-up capital amounted to
EUR 45 000 000, represented by 1 750 000 shares with no par value.

Revaluation reserve

The fair value revaluation reserve on available-for-sale financial assets includes the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-for-sale investments untit the investment is
derecognised or impaired.

Legal reserve

Under Luxembourg law, the Bank must appropriate to a legal reserve an amount equivalent to
at 5% of the annual net profit until such reserve is equal to 10% of the share capital. This
appropriation is made in the following year. Distribution of the legal reserve is restricted. As at
31 December 2009 and 2008, the legal reserve amounting to EUR 5 250 000 is higher than
10% of the share capital.

- 49 -



Société Européenne de Banque
Societé Anonyme

Notes to the annual accounts {continued)
31 December 2009

Note 16 — Shareholders’ equity (continued)
Other reserves

At 31 December 2009, the other reserves amount to EUR 369 294 456 (2008:
EUR 323 150 424).

At 31 December 2009 and 2008, this caption includes an amount of EUR 250 million resulting
from the transfer for no consideration of the branches of activity mentioned in Note 1.

The other reserves also include the restricted reserve: in order to benefit from a reduction of net
worth tax in accordance with the income tax law of 23 December 1997 {with particular reference
to article 2.3), as modified on 21 December 2001, the Bank has recorded until 2001 a restricted
reserve. The amount of this restricted reserve at 31 December 2009 and 2008 is

EUR 1 900 000.

Retained earnings

As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, retained earnings including the impact of the first time
application (FTA) of IFRS as adopted by the European Union, amount to EUR 4 828 022,

Dividends

The amount attributable to shareholders, including earnings profit from previous financial years
but excluding the impact of the first time application of IFRS as adopted by European Union,
totals EUR 92 865 611, which corresponds to a return on equity of circa 22% (2008: 23%). Itis
proposed fo the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting approving the annual accounts as of
31 December 2009 fo allocate the above mentioned amounts in accordance with the following

(in EURY}:

Net profit of 2009 financial year 92 865 611
Retained profit from previous years (excluding FTA) 11 836
Amount attributable to Sharehoiders 92 877 447
Allocation to reserves 55 500 000
Dividend for the financial year 37 350 000
Retained profit carried forward to the next financial year 27 447
Total 92 877 447
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Note 17 — Net interest income

(in EUR)

Cash balances with central banks

Financial assets held for trading

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
Hedging derivatives

Available-for-sale financial assets

Held-to-maturity investments

Loans and advances

Other

Total interest and similar income

(in EUR)

Hedging derivatives

Financial liabilities held for trading

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

Financial liabilities designated at fair value thought profit or loss
Other

Total interest expenses and similar charges

Net interest income

No interest has been accrued in respect of impaired assets in 2009 and 2008.

Note 18 — Net fee and commission income

(in EUR)

Credit activities
Asset management
Corporate services
Cther

Total fee and commission income

Brokerage and clearing fees
Other

Total fee and commission expenses

Net fee and commission income

2009 2008
1301099 3 121 669
805 281 25 422

11 978 794 14 043 478
43 089 330 71126 145
16 978 706 17 418 300
7019122 8560 403
267 741 253 271 836 630
368 881 151 187
349 382 466 378 672 234
2009 2008

115 996 795 77 347 146
- 2 968

115 412 646 237 480 891
1449 208 848 308
- 188 982

232 858 649 315 868 296
116 523 817 62 804 938
2009 2008

1005 083 1924 261

6 690 160 6026 814
12 496 648 10 836 753
19 050 660 20 102 458
39 242 551 38 890 316
5015646 5921274
4731032 5225 650
9746 678 11146 924
29 495 873 27 743 392
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Note 19 — Dividend income
At 31 December 2008 and 2008, the dividend income relates to available-for-sale financial
assets.

Note 20 — Net (unjrealised gains (losses) on financial assets and liabilities held for trading

At 31 December 2009 and 2008, the net un(realised) gains (losses) on financial assets and
liabilities held for trading are composed of:

(in EUR) 2009 2008
Interest rate instruments and linked derivatives -23 237703 -20 670 484
Foreign exchange transactions -2 160 677 4 043 988

-25 398 380 -15 726 496

Note 21 — Net (un)realised gains {losses) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit
or foss

As at 31 December 2009, the net (un) realised gains (losses) on financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss concern, on the assets side, bonds and structured
transactions and, on the liabilities side, debt securities and structured transactions.
As at 31 December 2008, they concerned, on the assets side, assets swaps and structured
transactions and, on liabiiities side, debt securities fair valued.

Note 22 — Net realised gains (losses) from financial assets and liabilities not at fair value through

profit or loss

As at 31 December 2009, they are mainly composed of gains for EUR 1323 872 (2008:
EUR 3 995 783} realised on the sale of bond instruments held in the available-for-sale portfolio.

Note 23 — Net other operating income / expenses

At 31 December 2008 and 2008, net other operating income is mainly composed of withholding
taxes and amounts retated to prior years, which were linked to the Bank's business acfivity.
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Note 24 — Administrative expenses

{In EUR) 2009 2008
Wages and salaries 15269 427 15 496 652
Social security charges 1692 478 1530 346
Legal pension and similar expenses 611695 666 621
Employees benefits 520 208 463 271
Other 143 245 97 160
Total staff expenses 18 237 053 18 254 050
Operative expenses 1227 987 992 746
Repair and maintenance 159 685 671 062
Training and moving 982 426 742 714
Indirect taxes " - 1965 143
IT outsourcing costs 46148615 4079275
Legal and professional fees 825 767 919 308
Marketing and representation fees 260 681 227 502
Charges linked to Corporate activity and other charges 26194890 6210 437
Total general and administrative expenses 10 690 651 15 808 187
Total administrative expenses 28 927 704 34 062 237

(1) As of 31 December 2009, indirect taxes are presented under the caption Net other operating

income / expenses for an amount of EUR 3 377 471 {(Refer also to Note 23)

The average number of personnel employed by the Bank during the financial year was as

follows:
2009 2008
Senior Management 3 3
Middle Management 56 61
Employees 152 143
211 207

Note 25 — Impairment

During the year, the Bank has booked/reversed impairment on financial assets as follows (in

EURY:

2009 2008
Available-for-sale financial assets — —
Loans and advances measured at amortised cost 4 004 108 2940 485
Impairment losses 4004 108 2 840 485
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Note 26 — Related party disclosures

Identity of related parties

The Bank has a related party relationship with its direct and non direct parent companies,
entities of its Group and with its directors and executive officers. All transactions made with

related parties are concluded on an arm's length basis.

The amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses as at 31 December 2008 and 2008

concerning Group entities and the parent companies are as follows (in EUR):

Assets and liabilities

Assets held for trading and assets carried at fair value
Available-for-sale financial assets

Held to maturity assessments

Loans and advances

Hedging derivatives

Financial liabilities held for trading and liabilities at fair
value

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Hedging derivatives

Income and expenses

Interest income

Fees and commissions received
Dividend income

interest expenses
Fees and commissions paid

2009 2008

186 333 893 73 836 494
452 551 426 24 101643
155 990 548 —
7177 462 428 6 540 003 024
22 910040 22 737 050
119 429 139 48 338 623
4715 581496 1 508 924 441
18 808 444 43712 934
2009 2008

201 924 423 236 665 009
4 843 302 5 997 886
923 544 944 390

158 070 879 74 709 780
4265236 4214 242

No impairment loss was recognised on available-for-sale financial assets, loans and advances

with related parties.

-54 -



Société Européenne de Bangue

Société Anonyme

Notes to the annual accounts (continued)

31 December 2009

Note 26 — Related party disclosires (continued)

The Banks incurred expenses with respect to the remuneration of the members of the

administrative, management and supervisory bodies as follow {in EUR):

Administrative bodies
Key management personnel

2009 2008
106 000 8¢ 000
861778 1175314
966 778 1265 314

As at 31 December 20089 and 2008, the Bank has no obligations related to retirement pensions

for former employees for the above mentioned bodies and personnel.

Note 27 — Commitments and contingent liabilities

The Bank’s commitments and contingent liabilities may be analysed as follows (in EUR):

Unused confirmed credits

- out of which fowards related parties
Guarantees and other direct substitutes for credit
- out of which towards related parties
Documentary credits

- out of which towards related parties

2009 2008

46 603 712 140 992 797
78478735 116 257 147
4167 027 55644 476
== 18 332 051

e 18 332 051
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Note 27 - Commitments and contingent liabilities {continued)

Unused confirmed credits and contingent liabilities are secured by guarantees received by the
Bank as follows (in EURY);

Contingent Unused confirmed

liabilities credits

Amounts 78 478 735 46 603 712

Real guarantees Securities 7294 294 ---

Other real guarantees 49 815 891 96 363

2009 Personal Government guarantees 3162 906 18 408 230
guarantees Credit institutions guarantees 13 461 828 20 001

Total guarantees 73734 917 18 524 594
Amounts 134 589 198 140 992 797

Real quarantees Securities 10071 216 579 850

Other real guarantees 71621403 520 001

2008 Personal Government guarantees 500 516 86 205 941
guarantees Credit institutions guarantees 27 997 202 26 211 496

Tofal guarantees 110 190 337 113 517 288

AGDL

The Bank is a member of the non-profit making organisation “Association pour la Garantie des
Dépdts, Luxembourg” (AGDL) that was established on 25 September 1989.

The AGDL has as its sole objective the establishment of a mutual system for the guarantee of
cash deposits for the benefit of customers of the member credit institutions of the Association
and for claims arising from investment transactions in favour of investors with the credit
institutions and investment firms which are members of the Association.

The guarantee of cash deposits and of claims arising from investment transactions in favour of
clients, individuals and certain companies as defined by the regulations, is limited to a maximum
amount fixed at the equivalent value in all currencies of EUR 100 000 per cash deposit and
EUR 20 000 per claim arising out of investment fransactions.

if the guarantee is called, the annual payment to be made by each member is limited to 5% of
Shareholders’ equity.

During the year 2009, advance payments were made for an amount of EUR 464 783 in relation
to the Bank's contribution in relation to the respite of payment occurred by three Luxembourg
subsidiaries of Icelandic bank’s. Partial refunds totalling EUR 252 724 were received later in the
year. These amounts have been recorded under the caption Net other operating income /
expenses.
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Note 28 — Investment management services and underwriting functions

The Bank provides its customers with, among others, the following services:
- Private Banking;

- Corpcerate services;

- Custody and administration for investment funds {until 7 July 2008);

- Custody;

- Domiciliation; and

- Fiduciary representation.

Assets managed on behalf of third parties are as follows (in EUR):

2009 2008
Custady and administration of transferable securities 10 104 315 727 9977 559 079
Fiduciary representation 211 391 202 138 769 978

Note 29 - Audit fees

The audit fees and audit related fees for the year ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 are as
follows (in EUR):

2009 2008

Audit fees 161 650 227 650
Audit related fees - 83 000
161 650 290 650

Note 30 - Events after the reporting date
The Bank is not aware of any adjusting or non-adjusting event that would have accurred

between 31 December 2009 and the date when the present annual accounts were authorised
for submission, by the Board of Directors, to the Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders.
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